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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of
Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of GurgaonSohnaHighwayPrivate Limited
which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2022, and profit, total
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other the standalone financial statements and Auditor's report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is information included in the Annual report,[ but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon]

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of financial statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of the relevant internal financial controls relevant to audit in order to
design adequate audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.



® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our qualified opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by theCentral
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the “Annexure A”statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable,

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by theCompany so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement and the
statement of changes in equity dealtwithby this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1st March, 2022,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March,2022,
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (_2).9_{"—511;:_ Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control over financial reporting of

theCom and the : i i
“Aﬂncx::::’h” operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in

'3 W_'ith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with the
requlmamenls of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended; the remuneration paid by the Company to
its directors are in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.

h)} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rulel |

of the Cum_pnnics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of ourinformation
and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have impact on its financial
position,

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
are any material foreseeable losses.

¢) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the InvestorEducation and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) Based on the representation received from the Management, other than those disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements,no funds have been advanced/received or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries’”)with the
understanding that the intermediary shall lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company/ funding party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) Based on the representation received from the Management, that, to the best of it’s knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaraniee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on audit procedures we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances;
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

j) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year hence reporting under clause
Rule 11(f) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, is not applicable

For S.L. Chhajed & Co. LLP
Ch red Accountants
Fi egistration No.: 000709C/ C400277
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Date:20™ May, 2022
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Annexure- A to the Independent Auditors’ Report:

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our
report of even date

i. a) A.The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of of its Property, Plant & Equipment.

B. The Company does not hold any intangible assets, hence reporting under Clause i(a)B of the order
is not applicable.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment,
by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified at reasonable interval.No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) The title deeds of the immovable property are duly held in the name of the company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.

€) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Unit for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

ii. a) The company had no inventory during and at the year end. Therefore, the reporting requirements of
paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

b) the company has not been sanctioned any working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees during
the reporting period, in aggregate, from the bank or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current asscts. Therefore, the reporting requirements under the paragraph3(ii)(b) of the order is not
applicable.

iii. According to the documents and records produced before us the company has not made any investmentor
has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or provided any guarantee or security,
secured or unsecured, to the companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during
the reporting period. Therefore, the reporting requirements under the paragraph (iii) (a-A, B), (iii) (b), (iii)
(), (iii) (d), (iii) (e) and (iii) (f) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, as per section 185 of the CompaniesAct, 2013,
no loan has been given,investments made and no guarantee and security has been given attracting the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act.Hence reporting requirements of paragraph 3(iv) of the
Order are not applicable.

v.  Based on our examination of the Company’s records and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits from public (including deemed deposits) during
the year within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014. Further, no order has been passed by
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal, or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any
other tribunal. Hence reporting requirements of paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 prescribed by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. However, we are not required to and have not carried out any
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vii. (a) According to information and explanations given to us and our examination of records the company is

regular in depositing undisputed Statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, goods and service tax and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities and no
undisputed amount is payables in respect of provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other material statutory dues which were arrear as on 31" March, 2022 for more than six months from
the date it became payable.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us there are no dues of income tax or sales tax or
service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

According to the records examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, there were no
transactions found unrecorded in the books of accounts which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

iX. a) According to the information and explanations and as verified from books of accounts, the company has

not defaulted in repayment of loans or interest thereon to any lender.

b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

¢)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has utilized the
money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained

d)According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

e)According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from any enti ty or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

X.Provisions of clause no. (x) (a&b) relating to utilization of moneys raised by way of initial public offer or
further public offer including debt instruments and term loans, prefrential allotment and private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially, optional) is not applicable to the Company, hence reporting
under clause (x) under para 3 of the order is not applicable.

xi.a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud or by the company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor we have been informed of such case by the management.

b) To the best of our knowledge and information with us there is no instance of fraud reportable under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

¢)As per information and explanation given by management there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the company during the year.

Xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company is not a Nidhi

Company. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xii) (a-c) of the order is not applicable..

Xiii. In our opinion and explanations given to us section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,2013 withregard to

transactions with related party have been complied with and all details as per accounting standard have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Xiv. a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system that

commensurate with the size and nature of its business, :
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b)We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under audit.

Xv. According to information and explanations given to us the company has not entered into anynon-cash
transaction with the directors or person connected with him.Hence, the reporting requirement under
paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable to the company

Xvi. a) In our opinion and information provided to us the company is not required to be registered under section
45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

b)Company is not a NBFC hence the reporting in this clause is not required
¢)Company is Non NBFC. Hence the reporting in this clause is not required

d)This clause is not applicable to the company as it is not NBFC

xvii. The company is generally profit making company and there was no cash loss in the current and last financial
year.

xviii, There being no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, hence reporting under clause (xviii) of
Para 3 of the order is not applicable

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainly exists as on the date of the audit report that
company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

xx. According to information and explanation given to us and as verified by us there is no amount unspent at the
year end with respect to compliance as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, henceforth reporting
requirement under clause (XX)(a) and (XX)(b) under para 3 of the order are not applicable.

For S.L. Chhajed & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fi egistration No.: 000709C/ C400277

Abhay Kumar Chhajed
Partner

Membership No.: 079662
UDIN: 22079662AJHOXJ1772

Date:20" May, 2022
Place: Bhopal
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Annexure- B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting Under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial control over financial reporting of Gurgaon SohnaHighways Private
Limitedas of 31 March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended on thar date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
saleguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial control over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectivel y in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures sclected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls overFinancial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that S
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accoutering principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controlsover Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future period are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal finance controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the
Internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.L. Chhajed & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Abhay Kumar Chhajed
Partner

Membership No.: 079662
UDIN: 22079662AJHOXJ1772

Date:20™ May, 2022
Place: Bhopal



Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

BALANCE SHEET as at 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

As at | As at

Particulars 1Notes

| 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets LB
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 - 3.02 3.18
Other Non-Current Financizal Assets 4 3.011.09 1,996.07
Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 5 63.30 4833
Other Non-Current Assats 8 255,81 -
3,333.22 2,047.58
Current Assets
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivable 7 8.00 8.00
(if) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 2.84 24.97
(iiiy Other Financial Assets 4 504,13 548.34
Contract Assets 9 73.40 -
Other Current Assets 6 113.85 327.97
702.32 909.28
Total Assets 4,035.54 2,056.86
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 10 560.30 618.80
Other Equity 1 408.01 200.52
e 1,068.31 820.32
{LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilitios 3
Financial Liabililies
(1) Borrowings 12 2 248 95 1.771.42
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15 109.23 4,28
2,358.18 1.775.70
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities RO S ;
(i) Borrowings 12 337,54 14969
(i) Trade Payables 13
(a) Total outstanding dues of MSME - -
(b) Total cutstanding dues other than (ii)(a) above 23360 171.83
(i} Other Financial Liabilities 14 8.16 3271
Contract Liabilities 16 2524 -
Other Current Lianilities 17 4.45 6.61
609.05 360.84
Total Equity and Liabllities 4,035.54 2,956.86

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For 8. L Chhajed & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gurgaon Schna Highway Private Limited

; CIN: U45400RJ2018PTC060833
\

Abhay Kumar Chhajed Harendra S]ngh Girish Pal Singh
Pariner : Managing Director Director
M.No.079662 \ DIN.00402458
Hiteshy Parmuwal BAG Singh Guleri * | < (R
Chief Financial Officer Company Secrstary »
Date: 20-May-2022 M.No. Ad4874

Place: Bhopal Place: Jaipur



Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholy Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupeaes in Million)

Particulars | 3M Mar-2022 | 3M Dec-2021 | 3M Mar-2021 | FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21

INCOME . ey i |

Revenue from Operations 301.24 526.76 544.02 1,786.22  1,582.21
Total Income 301.24 526.76 | 544.02 1,786.22 1,582.21
EXPENSES

Civil Construction Costs 168.19 363.04 40641 1,247.08  1,238.30

Employee Benefits Expenses _ 2.39 2.41 _254 10.20 9.68

Finance Costs - 53.58 5439 220.97 192.94

Depreciation oo a0l 0.04 004 | 0,16 0.16
_ Other Expenses ! 807 8.84 256 25.56 23.04
Total Expenses [ 238.45 447.91 46594 © 1,503,95  1,464.12
Profit Before Tax 62.79 78.85 78.08 282.27 118.09 '
Tax Expenses

Current Tax 0.47 0.71 (3.48) 228 (3.48)

Deferred Tax 16.36 19.13 [0.21) 104.85 (0.72)

15.83 19.84 (3.69) 107.18 (4.20)

Profit for the period £ 46.96 59.01 81.77 175,08 122,29
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) i il - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period | 46.96 59.01 B1.77 | 17509 | 12229
Earnings Per Share
(Nominal Value of Share Rs.10 Each)

Basic (Rs.) 0.75 0.95 1.44 2.81 218

Diluted (Rs.) 075 0.95 1.44 2:81 218

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For 8.L. Chhajed & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
CIN: U45400RJ2018PTCOB0R33
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Abhay Kumar Chhajed , "-1 BHOPAL ‘]‘ \ Harendra Singh Girish Pal Singh
Partner \S\ iy ) Managing Director Director
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Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Date: 20-May-2022
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Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

Particulars [ Notes| FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21

INCOME . |

Revenue from Operations 18 1,786.22 1,582.21
Total Income ; 1,786.22 1,582.21
EXPENSES

Civil Construction Costs 19 | . 1,247.06 1,238.30

Employee Benefits Expenses 20 =Ureidian 9.68

Finance Costs 21 22097 192.94

Depreciation 22 il ol L 0.16

Other Expenses 23 L 25.56 23.04
Total Expenses i _ 1,503.95 1,464.12
Profit Before Tax P - 4 | 118.09
Tax Expenses 124 EE

Current Tax . - . 223 (3.48)

Deferred Tax _ ) (= | 104.95 (0.72)

) e 107.18 (4.20)

Profit for the period 175.09 122.29
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) - :
Total Comprehensive Income for the period ___175.09 122.29
Earnings Per Share 32
(Nominal Value of Share Rs.10 Each) : _

Basic (Rs.) 2811 2.18

Diluted (Rs.) . . 281 2.18

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S.L. Chhajed & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited

Fi Reg. No.000709C/C400277 CIN: U45400RJ2018PTC060833
S Gl S

Abhay Kumar Chhajed 707 Harendra Singh Girish Pal Singh

Partner AE7TEN Managing Director Director

M.No.079662 ] SR DIN.00402458 DIN.00487476

| BROrAkL | =)
\a ) /&Y
N A ‘/ B 3
Rl Hitesh! Parmuwal nq‘[n’ajia?f
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date: 20-May-2022 M.No. A44874

Place: Bhopal Place: Jaipur




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

Cash and Cash Equivalents in Statement of Cash Flow

Particulars FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21
‘Cash Flows from Operating Activities /
Profit before tax " 2e2or 118.09
Adjustment for: ; '
Depreciation 0.16 0.16
Finance costs 22097 192.94 |
503.40 311.19
Working Capital Adjustments: | _
(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current financial assets ~(1,015.02) (1,075.88)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current financial assets = 4421 370.26
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets ' ol : 214.02 (7.94)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivable - (8.00)
(Increase)/Decrease in contract assets (73.40) -
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables _ 61.83 67.37
Increase/(Decrease) in other current financial liabilities 7.25 24.90
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities 2B (140.47)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities e = . (2.16) (6.74)
Cash Generated from Operating Activities | (490.44) (465.31)
Income tax paid (net) (17.20) (12.63)
Net Cash Generated from/ (used in) Operating Activities (A) (507.564) (477.94)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities _
Net Cash Generated from/ (used in) Investing Activities (B) - -
Cash Flow from Financing Activities m :
Finance Cost ~ ' (219.96) (207.64)
Proceeds from issue of share capital 40.50 95.30
Proceeds from securities premium 32.40 36.24
Proceeds from long term borrowings _ $60.00 576.16
Proceeds from short term borrowings 202.00 137.06
(Repayment) of short term borrowings . (129.43) (137.06)
Net Cash Generated from/ (used in) Financing Activities (C) L. AB5ST 500.06
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (22.13) 22,12
Opening Balance Cash and Cash Equivalents 24.97 2.85
Balance Cash and Cash Equivalents at period end 2.84 24.97
Notes:
1. The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) 'Statement of Cash Flows'
2. Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprises of: )
Balance with Banks: . . :
- Current Accounts _ 1.67 086
- Escrow Accounts 1.17 24.11
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.84 24.97
284 _24.07




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Financial Activities (Ind AS-7)

‘Particulars

Opening balance as on 01-Apr-2020
Finance cost during the period

Cash flows

..Received
Repayment
Finance cost paid

Non cash items
Non cash adjustments

Closing Balance as on 31-Mar-2021

Opening balance as on 01-Apr-2021
Finance cost during the period
|Cash flows
Received
Repayment
Finance cost paid
Non cash items
_Non cash adjustments _
Closing Balance as on 31-Mar-2022

Total

Borrowings Finance Cost
1,344.95 1470  1,359.65
- 192.94 192.94
71822 -  713.22
(137.06) > (137.06)
- (207.64) (207.64)
1,921.11 - 1,921.11
1,921.11 - 1,921.11
- 220.97 220.97
~ 762.00 - 762.00
(129.43) - (129.43)
- (219.96) (219.96)
32.81 (1.01) 31.80
2,586.49 - 2,586.49

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S.L. Chhajed & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm': ;eg. No.000709C/C400277

Abhay Kumar Chhajed , \ )
Partner r { BHOPAL
M.No.079662 A%\

Date: 20-May-2022

Place: Bhopal

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
CIN: U45400RJ2018PTC060833

Harendra Sing Girish Pal Singh

Managing Director Director
DIN.00402458 DIN.00487476

.UJ’_DQ&—
Bafviater Stgh Guleri

Company Secretary
M.No. A44874

Hitesh Parmuwal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Jaipur




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited

(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

Particulars

|Balance at the baginning of the reporting period

Changes in equtiy share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period

Changes in equtiy share capital during the period
Balance at the end of the reporting period

B Other Equity

Particulars

As at No. of As at
31-Mar-2022 Shares | 31-Mar-2021
6,19,80,000 618,80 5.24,50,000 524.50
6,19,80,000 619.30 524,50,000 524.50
40.50,000 40.50 95,30,000 95,30
6,60,30,000 £60.30 8,19,80,000 619.80

Asat’ |

As at

Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the reporting penod
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors

. Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period

Total comprehensive income for the period
Dividends

Transfer to retained earnings

Any other changes

Balance at the end of the reporting period

Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Changes in aceounting policy or prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period

Total comprehensive income for the period
Dividends

Transfer to retained earnings

Change in Sccurities Premium During the year
Balance at the end of the reporting period

Total Other Equity

The noles referred above are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For 8.L. Chhajed & Co. LLP
gred Accountants
g Reg. No.OOD709C/C400277

Abhay Kumar Chhajed
Partner
M.No.079662

Date: 20-May-2022

Place: Bhopal

Haren Singh
Managing Directer
DIN.00402458

Hi armuwal
Chief Financial Officer

31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

164.28 41,99
164.28 41.99
175.09 122,29
339.37 164.28
3624 -
36.24 | P
32.40 36,24
68.64 36.24
408.01 200.52

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
CIN: U45400RJ2018PTCOG0B33

Gillsh‘?al Singh

Director
DIN.00487476

B

inghGuleri
Caompany Secretary
M.No. A44874

Place: Jaipur




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022

Corporate and General information

Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited (GSHPL-"The Company") is a Private Limited Company registered under the Company Act
2013. Hts registered office is at 14, Panchwati Colony, Ratanada, Jodhpur {Rajasthan) -342001 India.

The Gompany is a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) promoted by H.G. Infra Engineering Limited (HGIEL) for Construction of 6 Laning &
Strengthening of New NH-248A from Existing km 11+682 to exiting KM 24+400 in the state of Haryana Package-2: Existing Ch, Km
114682 to km 24+400 (Design Ch. Km 9+282 to km 22+000) under NHDP Phase-IV on Hybrid Annuity Mode.

These financial stalements were authorized to be issued by the board of directors on 20-May-2022.

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A Basis of preparation
() Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Seclion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act,

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
a) Certain financial assels and financial liabilities measure at fair value;

ended standards adople : any:
The Company has applied the following amendments lo standards for the first time for their annual reporling period
commencing April 1, 2021:
o Extension of COVID-18 related concessions - amendments to Ind AS 118
o Interest rate benchmark reform - amendments to Ind AS 109 (Financial Instruments), Ind AS 107 (Financial Instruments
Disclosures). Ind AS 104 (Insurance Contracts) and Ind AS 116 (Leases)
o Definition of Material — amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8
The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amaounts recognised in prior periods and are rot expecled to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

(iv) Reclassifications consequent to amendments to Schedule Ill. (Refer Note 12)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the inlernal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM). The Managing Director of the Company has been identified as CODM and he assesses the financial performance and
position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions. Refer Note 38 for segment information.

Operating cycle
Assets and liabilities are classified as current if it is expected to realize or sattle within 12 months after the balance sheet date.

B Revenue recognition
(i) Service concession arangement
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The company assesses promises in the contracl that are separate performance obligations to which portion of transaction
price is allocated.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It excludes taxes or other
amounts collected from the customer in its capacity as an agent.

The company constructs the infrastructure (road) used to provide a public service and operales and maintains that
infrastructure for a specified period of time. Under Appendix D fo Ind AS 115- Revenue from contracts with Customers | this
arrangement is accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible assets Is used to the extent that the
company receive the rights to charge the users of the public service. The financial assets is used when the company has an
unconditional right to receive cash or other financial assets from or at the direction of the grantor of construction services.

Design-Build-Operate-Transfer (DBOT) conlracts on hybrid annuily basis conlain three streams of revenue- Construction
revenue . Financing income and Operation & Maintenance (O&M) income. The construction stream of DBOT revenues are
accounted for in the construction phase of DBOT, O8&M Income Is recognisad in the operating phase of DBOT, while finance
income income is recognised over the concession period on the imputed interest method.

Revenue related to construction services provided under the service concession arrangement is recognised based on stage.of

completion of the work performed. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to input method L&, cost in’gmgq.iihdam i
in PrOPOTLoN 10 LoLal esUmeEled cost [0 Complete e work, e R

Revenue from operation and maintenance activities are recognised at an amount for which it has right to
right to invoice) from the customars that corresponds directly wilh{ﬂ;q v{plmz of the performance completed to
/ .,— '_" L B ¥

ngidération (Le.




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiery of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022

Contract Balances - Contract Assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a cuslomer before the customer pays consideration or bafore payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract assels represent revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed and include unbilled receivables. Unbiled
receivables, which represent an unconditional right to payment subject only to the passage of time. are reclassified to accounts
receivable when they are billed under the terms of the contract.
ontract Balances - Conlract Liabilities

A contract liabiiity Is the obligation to transfer goods or services lo a customer for which the Company has received
ideration (or an amount of consideration is dus) frem the eustomer. If o customar paye eoneidaration befora the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due
(whichever Is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. Contract
liabilities represent amounts billed to clients in excess of revenue recognized lo date and other advances received from
customers.

ol

Variable consideration

The nature of the company’s contracts gives rise to saveral types of variable consideration, including claims, unpriced change
orders, award and Incentive fees, change in law, liquidated damages and penalties. The company recognizes revenue for
varigble consideration when it is probabla that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur. The company estimates the amount of revenua to be recognized on variable consideration using the expected value
(i.2., the sum of a probability-weighted amount) or the most likely amount method, whichever is expecied to batter predict the
amount.

The Company's claim for extra work, incentives and escalation in rates relating to execution of contracts are recognized as
revenue in the year in which said claims are finally accepted by the clients. Claims under arbitration/ disputes are accounted as
income based on final award. Expenses on arbitration are accounted as Incurred,

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimales of variable consideration are not
constrained based on its historical experience, business forscast and the curment economic conditions. In addition, the
uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

Revenues are shown net of Goods & Service Tax, applicable discounts and allowances,

ii) Interest income
‘ Interest income is recugnised using effective interest rate (CIR) method.
The ‘effective interest rate' is the rate thal exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipls (hrough the expected
life of the financial instrument to:
- the gross carrying amount of the financial assets; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liabilities.

(iil) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date that the Company’s right to receive paymen
established.

(iv) Other income:

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncentainty exist regarding the amaunt that wil

C Income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities aftribulable to temporary differences.

() Current income tax
Tne current income tax charge Is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment.
The company measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides @ better prediction of the resclution of the uncertainty.
Current lax assets and tax liabilities are offsel where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the assel and settle the liability simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax
Daferred income 1ax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assats and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Daforred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end cf the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income lax asset [s realized or the deferred Income lax
liability Is setled.
Dafsrred tax assots are recognised for all deductible temporary dftarences and unusea tax lussas/:,ﬁ‘ﬁ_\fgeﬁlp-‘quly i ts
probabio that future taxabla amounis will be availabie 1o ulilise thase temparary differances. A — N




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31 -Mar-2022

Deferred tax asssts and liabilities are offset whan there is a legally enforceable right o offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the sama taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except o the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income of directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehansive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

D Leases
Lease payments to be made under reasonably canain extension options are also included in the measurement of tha liability. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessae’s incremental borrowing rate Is used, being the rate that the individual
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar vaiue to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:
« where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

« uses @ bulld-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by Company, which does
not have recent third party financing, and makes adjustments specific to the lesse, €.g. term, cauntry, currency and sacurity.

Lesse payments ara allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periadic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured al cost comprising the following:

+ the amount of the initial measurement of laase liability

- any leasa payments made at or before the commencement data less any lease incentives recaived

+ any initial direct costs, and

» restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally deprecialed over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Shorl-lerm leases are leases with a laase lerm of 12 months or less. Low-value assels comprise IT
equipment and small items of office furniture

E Impairment of non-financial assels

Mon-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicale that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the assel's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets of group of assels (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
that suffered an impairment are reviewed fot possibla reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

F Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpese of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash squivalents includes cash on hand, deposits heid at
call with financial institutions, other short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less thal are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

G Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade
teceivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional uniess they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised al fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss
allowance.

H Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Classlfication '

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
() those measured al amortized cost.

The classification depends an the enlity's business model for managing the financial assets 8

flaws.




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022

Initial recognition and measuremeant
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assels are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through Statement of Profit
or Loss, transaction costs that are attribulable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaclion costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed of in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at:

(i) amonized cos|

Debt instruments
Subsequenl measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debl instrument in only one category as below:

(il Amortized Cost: Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Inleres! income from these financial assels is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains / (losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit
and loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whelher there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note
28 details how the company determines whether there has bean a significant increase in credit risk.

Faor trade recaivables (Including contract assets) only, tha Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 108, which
requires lifetime ECL to be recognised as loss allowance.

Deracognition of Financial Assats
A financial sseet is deracognized only when:

() the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

(i) retains the contractual rights to recsive the cash flows of the financial asset, bul assumes a contractual obligation to pay the

cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferrad an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transfarred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial esset. In such ceses, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retaing substantially all riske and rawards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial assst, Where the Company
retains control of the financial asset, the asset (s continusd to ba recognized to the extent of continuing involvernent in the financial
asset.

Income Recognition

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. Interest
income on financial assats at amorlised cost using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance),

i 1L H
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are initially measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss, Iransaction costs that are directly atiributabla to the issue/origination of the financial liability

Subsequent Measuroment

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amertized cost
using the effective interast method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit
and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in slatement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the conlract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liabllity that has been extinguished or transferred te another party a_ncl the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred of liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as other gains/
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Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022

| Offsetting Financial Instruments
Einancial assels and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Ealance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable
fight to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to sattie on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Tha legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the vent of default. insolvency ot bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

J Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment ar@ stated al historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical
cosl includes expenditure that is directly altributable to the acquisition of the items,
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying emount or recognized as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the itern can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separals asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, rates and residual value
Depreciation is provided on & pro-rata basis on the Straight Line Method (SLM) over the eslimated useful lives of the assets, based
on technical evaluation done by management's expart, which are higher than those specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assels. The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed at
least at sach financial year end. If the expectations differ from previous astimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as
a change in accounting estimate.
The management estimates useful lives of the tangible fixed assets as follows.

() Building 60 Years

An assel's carrying amount Is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by eomparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in profit or loss
within other gains/(losses).

K Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period.

L Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognized st fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amorlized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cosls) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
Borrowings are clessified as current liabilities uniess the Company has an uncenditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

M Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when Company has a present legal or constructive obligation &s a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be refiably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operaling losses.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the prasent.
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of lime is recognized as interest expense.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when lhere is & possible obligation arising from pasl events, the exislence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of the
Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is sither not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to sattia the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

N Insurance claims
Insuranca claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expacted to be admitted and to the extent that the amount
recoverable can be measured reliably and It is reasanable o expoct ultimate collection.

¢ Claims
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debls are disclosed under contingent liabllities. Claims made by the_compal
are recognised as and when \he same is approvad by the raspective avthorities with wnom the claim is lodged. Y‘\“h H,’G ]
2 .P"_“"-"}"j’.
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Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022

P Employee Benefits
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense on accrual basis whan employees have rendered services
and as when the contributions are due
Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
* The date of the plan amendment or cunaiiment;
* The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.
}_Jet interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit applying the discount rate to the net defined benafit
liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined bensfil obligation under the head ‘'employee
benefit expense’ in the statement of profit and loss:

+ Service costs comprising currenl service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and nonrautine settiements;
+ Net interest expense or income.

Q Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as oquity. Incremental costs directly altributable to the Issue of new shares or options are shown in
statement of profit and loss.

R Dividends

Provision is made for the amoun! of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no lenger at the discretion of the
entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reponting period.

S Eamings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic sarnings per share is calculated by dividing:
a) The profit attributable to ewners of the company
b) By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year

(i) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

a) the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equily shares, and

b) the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

T Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial stalements and notes have been rounded off ta tha nearest millian as per the requirement of
Schedule Il unless otherwise stated.

Note 2: Critical estimates and judgements

Freparation of the financial statements requires use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies. This note provides an cverview of the
areas that involved a higher degree of judgements or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted dus to
estimates and assumptions tuming out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed inlormation about each of these estimates
and judgements s included in relevant notes logether with information about the basis of calculation for each affecled line item in the
financial statements,

(i) Estima 5€ g Of erty, plant and equipmen

The company estimates the useful life of the Proparly, plant and equipment as mentioned in Note 1(.J) above, which is base:

the expected lechnical obsolescence of such assets. However, the actual useful life may be shorter or longer thz

estimated, depending on technical innovations and competitor actions.

(i) imation ir val financial instrum =
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is detarmined using valuation g i
Company uses its judgement to select a varisty of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on magkel
existing at the end of each reporting period. Refer note 27 on fair valuz measurements where the assumptions and-me
perform the same are stated.

(i) Revenue recognition
The Company uses the percentage of completion method using the input (cost expanded) mathod to measure progress towards
completion in respect of fixed price contracts. Percentage of completion method accounting relies on estimates of lotal expected
conliract revenue and costs. This method is followed when reasonably dependable estimates of the revenues and costs applicable
to various elemenis of the contract can be made, Because the financial reporting of these contracts depends on estimates that are
assessed continually during the term of these contracts, recognized revenue and profit are subject lo revisions as the contract
progresses to completion. When estimates indicate that a loss will be incurred, the loss is provided for in the period in which the
loss becomes probable.

The Company based its assumplions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prapared, Existing
circumstances and assumptions aboul fulure developments, however, may change due lo markel changes of circurnslances

arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial stalements in the peMET‘ E‘E;‘

changes are made and, If materlal, thelr effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

3 Property, Plant and Equipment
Particulars Buildings

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT
Opening Gross Carrying Amount as at 01-Apr-2020 3.52 352
Additions - 5 -
Closing gross carrying amount 3.52 3.52
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ;
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 0.18 018
Depreciation charge during the period ge s 0.16
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 0.34 0.34
Net Carrying Amount as on 31-Mar-2021 3.18 318
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT I
Opening Gross Carrying Amount as at 1-Apr-2021 3.52 352
Additions - -
Closing gross carrying amount 3.52 3.52
E |
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 0.34 0.34
Depreciation charge during the period 0.16 0.16
Clesing Accumulated Depreciation 0.50 0.50
Net Carrying Amount as on 31-Mar-2022 3.02 3.02

The carrying amounts of all the assets has pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings. (Refer Note 12)

4 Other Financial Assets

Pirticuiare | 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Non-Current _

Grant & Annuity receivable from NHAI 3,011.09 1,996.07
Total Non-Current Financial Assets 3,011.09 1,996.07
Current :

Grant & Annuity receivable from NHAI 503.24 548.30

Deposits & Advances 0.89 0.04
Total Current Financial Assets 504.13 548.34

§ Non-Current Tax Assets and Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

3 As at ASs at
p -
i | 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2024

Advance tax and TDS assels 65.53 5092
Provision for tax =t i (2.23)! (2.59)
Total Non-Current Tax Assets and (Current Tax Liablilities) (Net) 63.30 48.33

6 Other Assets
Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

Non-Current
Balan i Vi n horiti

GST input credit 255.61 -
Total Other Non-Current Assets 255.81 -
Current
Mobilisation/ Material advance given to HG Infra Engineering Limited (Holding Company) 28,27 33.41
Prepaid Bxpenséa 2_5.03 2562
Balance with govemnment authorities:

GST cash credit 0.01 11.82

GST input credit e : 60.64 257.12
Total Other Gurrent Assets { 113.86 SZT.97

7 Trade Receivable

Particulars

As at | As at
| 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

Trade Recelvable
Unsecurad, considersd geod
Total

AL L2l
8.00 8.00




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Cwned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency. Indian Rupees in Million)

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
Particulars [ I,

| <6Month | 6Mto 1Y
As at 31-Mar-2024
(i) Undisputed trade receivable - i
considered good .00 B ) ¢ y 800
(ii} Undisputed trade receivables -
which have significant increase in - - - - - "
credit risk
(iif) Undisputed trade receivables -
credit impaired
(iv) Disputed trade receivable -
considered good
(v) Disputed trade receivable -
which has significant increase in - - = - - A
credit risk
(vi) Disputed trade receivable -
credit impaired

-Mar-2022

(i) Undisputed trade receivable -
considered good
(1) Undisputed trade receivables - ‘
which have significant increase in - - - - - i -
credit risk
(lii) Undisputed trade receivables -
credit impaired
(iv) Disputed trade receivable -
considered good
(v) Disputed trade receivable -
which has significant increase in - - - - - .
credit risk
(vi) Disputed trade receivable -
credit impaired

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

1Y - 2Y 2Y - 3Y >3Yoar | Total

- - 8.00 - - 8.00

8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at A3 at
J1-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Balances with Banks |
In current accounts 1.67 0.86
In escrow accounts 1.7 24.11
Total 2.84 24.97

Nole: For charge created on the aforesaid assets (Refer Note 12)

9 Contract Assots

Particulars Asg at As at
31-Mar-2022_| 31-Mar-2021

Accrued Revenua 73.40 -

Total 73.40 -

10 Equity Share Capital

Particulars | A8 at | Asat

| 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Authorised ?
6,62,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each (6,62,50,000 as at 31-Mar-2021) €62.50 662.50

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
6,60,30,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each (6, 19,80,000 as at 31-Mar-z021) 660.30 619.60
Total == 660.30 619.80




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupses in Million)

Movement of Equity Share Capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period
Particulars ____As at 31-Mar-2022 | As at 31-Mar-2021 i
| Nos of Shares| Amount | Nos of Shares| Amount

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period _ 6,18,80,000 618.80  5,24,50,000 524.50
Changes in equtiy share capital due to prior period errors 7 - % - -

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period  6,19,80,000 619.80  5,24,50,000 524.50
Changes in equtiy share capital during the period 40,50,000 40.50 95,30,000 85.30
Balance at the end of the reporting period 6,80,30,000 660.30  6,19,80,000 §19.80

Particulars of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Compan
Particulars i Akav3ifr.angd - oiTor- A ot 91 -Mar2021,
| Nos of Shares| % of Total | Nos of Shares |

% of Total

Equity shares of Rs,10 each fully paid up held by

HG Infra Engineering Limited (Holding Company) 6.60,30.000 100.00% 6,19,80,000 100.00%
* Including 1 equity share held by nominee shareholder.

Note: Out of above, 51% of shares have been pledged against borrowing. (Refer Note 12)

Shareholding of Promotors

% of Total | 9% Change

Name of Promoter i No of Shares Share : Birins derled
As at 31-Mar-2021 !

HG Infra Engineering Limited (Holding Company) 6.19,80,000 100.00% 0.00%
Total 6,19,80,000 100.00% 0.00%
As at 31-Mar-2022 AR B r

HG Infra Engineering Limited (Holding Cornpany) 6,60,30,000 100.00% 0.00%
Total : ) . 680,30,000 100.00% 0.00%

Terms & Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank squally with regard to dividends and share in
the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights
of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion o its share of the paid up equity capital of the
Company. Voting rights cannot be exarcised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been
paid.

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares

On winding up of the Company, the holders of squity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company,
remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held

As per the records of the company, including its registers of shareholders/ member and other declaration received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

11 Other Equity

As at
31.Mar-2021

Particulars !
|

As at
31-Mar-2022 |

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 164.28 41.99
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors | - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 164.28 41.99
Total comprehensive income for the period 175.09 122.29
Dividends 5 =
Transfer to retained earnings el et =
Any other changes o =
Balance at the end of the reporting period 339.37 164.28
Securities Premium _ sl
Balance at the beginning of the reporting pericd 3624 -
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors = 2
Reslated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 36.24 .
Total comprehensive income for the period : '
Dividends = ; B tigial s e
Transfer to retained eamings ZAnJEL PYEnL %5 s
Any other changes (Share capital issued) 32.40 36.24
1otal Securition Pramium tuL4 do.24
Telal Other Equily 408.01 200.52




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
[Currency: Indian Rupeas in Million)

12

13

Note: Retained eamings represents the amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends considering the
requirements of the Company Act, 2013. No dividends are declared or paid by the company during the year.

Borrowings
| As at As at
31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

Particulars

Non Current Borrowings

Secured:

Term loan from banks & financial institutions 2,266,33 1,7689.81

Unamortised borrowing cost* UTSB) (13.' 39}
Total Non-Current Borrowings : 2,248.95 1.771.42
Current Borrowings
Secured:

Current maturities of long term borrowings 23317 149.69
Unsecured.

Loan from HG Infra Engineering Limited (Holding Company) ! 104.37 =
Total Current Borrowings 337.54 149.69

* The balance of amortised processing fess effect has been given.

Security for Term Loan:

(i) A first charge on all the Borrower's tangible assets (present and future), intangible assets excluding project assets
(i) A first charge on &ll the Borrower’s intangible assets.

(iii) A first charge over all the bank accounts of the Borrower.

(iv) A first charge or assignment by way of creation of secured interest over the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands
whatsoever of the borrower in, to and under the project documents, approvals, letter of credit, guarantees, insurance contracts.

(v) Corporate guarantee of promoters.

(vi) Personal guarantees of personal guarantars

(vii) Assignment of unsecured shargholder loan/ financial assistance/ funds infused by the promoter.

(wvili) Piedge of 51% of each of the instruments (100% for debentures).

Terms of Repayment:

Loan will be repaid in 26 unequal half yearly instalments in accordance with the Amortisation Schedule set forth in Schedule IV of
the Loan Agreement post the maratorium period after GOD, Repayment will start from Aug-2022.

Interest Rate on Term Loan:

Interest Rate: 1 Year MCLR plus spread based onrating i.e. 8.85% paid during the period and 7.30% paid post 25-Feb-2022.
Terms of Unsecured Loan:

Loan received from holding company is interest free and repayable on demand.

Trade Payable

| As at | As at
31-Mar-2022 | 31 -Mar-2021
Current
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises (refer note below) - -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 23366 68.83
(c) Retention Payable - 103.00
Total Current Trade Payable 233.66 171.83

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
Particulars _ Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

<1Year | 1Y-2Y | 2Y-3Y | =>aYear |  Total
As at 31-Mar-2021 :
Current
(NMSME - - - o .
(ii) Others 68.83 103.00 - : 47183

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME o - ® T i
(iliy Disputed dues - others 2 = - P =
As at 31-Mar-2022
Current
(1) MSME
(i) Others
[iii) Dieputad duee MUML
L) tiapuieud gucoa = Ut a




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and
which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 has been made in the financial stalement as at 31-Mar-2022 based on the information received and
available with the Company. On the basis of such information, no interest is payable to any micro, small and medium enterprises.
Auditors have relied upon the information provided by the Company

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payable is disclosed in Note 26.

Of the above, trade payable to relaled parties are as below-
As at As at

Particulars |

31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Trade payable to related parties 233.66 171.83
Total 233.66 171.83

14 Other Financial Liabilities

k | As at As at
iars
i | 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

Current I

Employee related liabilities 0.67 0.67
Other payables 7.48 32.04
Total Other Current Financlal Liabilities 8.16 32.7

15 Deferred Tax Liabllities and (Assets)
A Deferred tax liabilities and (aseste) at pariod and

Particulars FY 2021-22 | 'FY 2020-21

Deferred tax liability

Temporary difference of loan processing fees amortisation 4.38 4.€3

Temporary difference of finance income 105.06 -

Depreciation as per books vs income tax 0.14 0.11
109.58 4.74

Deferred tax asssts

Temporary differance of preliminary expensas {0.35) (0.46)

(0.35) (0.46)
Net Deferred Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities 109.23 4,28

B Movement in temporary differences:

| Recognised l -
| =)
in P&L Recognised in| Balance as at

Particulars start c?f the during the OCI during the| End QI the
peried period

|
Balance as at

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary difference of loan processing fees 4.63 (0.25) - 4.38

Temporary difference of finance income - 108,06 - 105.06

Depreciation as per books vs income tax 0.11 0.03 - 0.14
4.74 104.84 - 109.58

Deferred tax assets

Temporary difference of preliminary expenses (0.46) 0.11 - (0.35)
(0.48) 0.11 - (0.35)

Net Deferred Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities 4.28 104.95 - 109.23

16 Contract Liabilities
: As at As at

FRIUUINS 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

Advance from custorners 2524 -

Total 25.24 -

17 Other Liabilities

! As at | As al
Particulars | 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
- . 1

Current
Statulory Liabilities )
Total Othor Current Liakilitioe AN

£.61




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

18 Revenue from Operations

Particulars i FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21
Civil construction revenue 1,027.74 1,247.22
Change of Scope work revenue 416.27 -

Utility work revenue 68.28 22661
Finance income P 273.83 108.38
Total ! 1,786.22 1,562.21

(a) Disagaregated Revenue Information

Having regard to the nature of contract with customer, there is only one type of category of revenue; hence
disclosure of disaggregation of revenue is not given

(b) Receivable under Concession Arrangement and Contract Balances

The company classifias the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either receivable or unbilled
revenue. A receivable is a right to consideration thal is unconditional upon passage of lime. Revenue for such
services is recognized as relaled services are performed. Revenue in excess of billings is recorded as unbilled
revenue and is classified as financial asset for those cases as right to consideration ie unconditional upen
passage of time. Invoicing to the customer is based on milestone as defined in the contract.

(c) The Transaction Price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31st March 2022 are as follows:

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at 31st March 2022
Is Rs.1706,72 Mn. Out of this, the Company expect to recognize revenue around Rs.86.14 Mn in next year and
remaining thereafter. Remaining performance obligation eslimales are subject to change and affected by several
factors including terminations, change of scope of contracts, occurrence of same is expected lo be remote.

(d) Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognized in the Stalement of Frofit and Loss with contract price has
not provided as there is no adjustment made with respect to contract price.

19 Civil Construction Costs

Civil subconiract charges 762.51 1,011.69

Change of scope subcontract expenses 416.27 .

Utility work subcontract expenses £8.28 22661

Total 1,247.06 1,238.30
20 Employes Benefits Expe

Particulars | FY2021-22 | FY 2020-21

Salary, wages and bonus | 10.20 068
Total 10.20 9.68

* Contribution o defined benefit plan is Rs.0.12 Mn (PY Rs.0.12 Mn)

21 Finance Costs

Particulars FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21

Interest on borrowings _217.85 177.83

Interest on client advance - 7.20

Other borrowing cost 3.12 7.91

Total 220.97 192.94
22 Depreciation

Particulars FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21

Depreciation & Amortisation Q.16 0.16
Total 016 0.16
23 Other Expenses
RS FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21
Insurance expenses OT 391
Legal and professional charges 2.88 237
Miscellaneous expenses 0.37 1.39
Independent engineers fees 15.24 1527 |
Payment 10 auditors (refer note below) 0.11 0.10
CSR expenses (refer note below) 119 .
Total 25.56




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

(a) Payment to Auditors
Particulars

FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21

Statutory audit fees 0.10 010

Reimbursemant of expenses 0.01 -

Total 0.11 0.10
{b)

Particulars

| FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21

(i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year . 119 -
(ii) Amount of expenditure incurred _ B 119 %
(iii) Shortfall at the end of the year (Excess Spent) I (0.00) -
|(v) Total of previous years shortfall - -
(v) Reason for shortfall* NA

1. Education

2, Assistance for selting up
(vi) Nature of CSR activities homes and shelters

3. Enviranmental sustainability
and animal welfare

(vil) Details of related party transactions, e.9., conlribution to a trust controlled by R;”f&'g" "
the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard pF:lun:a ok

(viii) Where a provision Is made with respect o a liability incurred by entering into .
a coniractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be NA NA
shown separately

24 Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS-12 (Income Tax)
A Income Tax (Income) Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars | FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21
Curmrent tax

‘Current tax on profit for the year ! 223 250
‘Adjustment for current tax of prior period - {6.07)
Defarred tax _ ik =
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences (Refer note 15) 104.95 {0.72)
Income tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss 107.18 (4.20).

B Reconciliation of effeclive lax rate
Particulars FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21

Profit before tax 282.27 118.09
Income tax expenses calculated @ 25.17% (PY @ 25.17%) 71.04 20.72
Adjustment for current lax of prior period AL (6.07)
Effect of disallowed deduction under Income Tax Act 36.14 (27.85)
Tax Expenses 107.18 (4.20)

Pursuant to The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019, tax rales have changed with effecl from the
assessment year beginning from 1st April, 2020 and accordingly, the company has opted for reduced rates
prescribed under section 115 BAA of the Income tax Act. Consequent to this, the Company has recognised
provision for taxation at the rate prescribed in the said Section.




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
{Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

25 Related Party T
A Related Parties with whom the Company had transactions during the period
{a) Holding Company:
HG. Infra Engineering Limiled
(b) Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Mr Harendra Singh - Managing Director
Mr Girish Pal Singh - Director
Mr Onkar Singh - Director
Mr Hitesh Parmuwal - Chief Financial Officer
Mr Balvinder Singh Guleri - Company Secretary
Mr Navneat Singh Choudhary - General Manager Admin
Mr Hodal Singh - Relative of Director
Mr Vijendra Singh - Relalive of Director
Ms Nisha Singh - Director
{c) Other Related Parties:
H.G. Foundation

B Related Party Transactions with Holding Company and KMPs
The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel and their relaled parties were no more
favourable than those available, or those which might reasonably ba expactad to be available, in respect of similar
transactions with non-key management personnel related entities on an arm's length basis.

The aggregate value of the Company's fransactions and culstanding bal lating to key management personnel
and entities over which they have contrcl or significant influence is as follows

Transaction with related pa

Nature of Transaction

Amount | Amount

| FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21

Loan Recelved

(i} HG. Infra Engineering Limited 233.80 137.06
Loan Repaid

(i) H.G. Infra Engineering Limited 12043 137.068
Share Capital Issued

(i) HG. Infra Engineering Limited 4050 95.30
Socurities Premium

(i) HG. Infra Engineering Limited 3240 36.24
Civil Construction Costs (Net of taxes)

(i) H G, Infra Engineering Limited 1,247 06 1,254 16
Mobilisation/ Materlal Advance Pald (Gross)

(1} H.G. Infra Enginesring Limited 10508 140.00
Mobilisation/ Material Advance Recovared (Gross)

(i) H.G. Infra Engineering Limited 11023 106.58
CSR Expenses
. () H.G. Foundation 020 -
'Rent Paid

(i) Hodal Singh 014 010
Guarantee Commission (Net of taxed) :

(i) H.G. Infra Engineering Limited 7 2879
Sitting Fees

(i) Mr Girish Pal Singh 006 0.03

(lil) Mr Onkar Singh 0.06 010

(iv) Ms Nisha Singh 002 -
Short Term Employee Benefits

(i) Mr Hitesh Parmuwal 320 253

(i) Mr Balvinder Singh Guleri 053 038

(i) Mr Navneet Singh Choudhary 288 2894

Outstanding balances:

e As at As at

Nature of Transaction 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Losn Payable

(i) H.G. Infra Engineering Limited 104.37
Trade Payable

(i) H.G. Infra Engineering Limited 23366 171.83
Mobilisation/ Material Advance (Gross)

(i) H.G. Infra Engineering Limited 2827 3341
Other Payable )

(i) H.C. Infra Engingering Limited } - 3181
Short Term Employee Benefits Payable

(i) Mi Hitesh Parmuwal 0,26 0.1€

(1) Mr Balvinder Singh Guler 004 0.03

(iii) Mr Navneet Singh Choudhary - 01E

Guarantees given on behalf of Company
(i) H.G. Infra Engineering Limited (Corporate Guarantee) e
(if) Mr Harendra Singh (Personal Guaranipa) PO L deall s {015
(iii} Mr Vijendra Singh (Personal Guarantee) FATY
(iv) Mr Ginigh Pal Singh (Personal Guarantes) 3
Note- No amount pertaining to related parties have been written aﬁp M{rhmbatk aunrpm pariod (PY Nil)
-/

2,87860 267660

2,87860 287860




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
{Currency: Indian Rupees in Millicn)

26 Disclosure pursuant to Para 6 of appendix D of ind AS 115 for Service Concesslon Agresments

{
- Financial
L Description of the |
Nature of Entity Bt :I ‘ et Significant Terms of the Arrangemeant | Assets as at
Al | 31-Mar-2022
Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limitad The Company is formed as a Period of Concesalon: 2018-2008 3,514,323

special pupose vehicls (SPV) for Remuneration: 40% during construction period and balanca 60% in biannual annutly in 15
Consiruction of 6 Lening & years &3 per concession agreement

Strenginening of New NH-248A investment grant from concession grantor: No

from Existing km 11+682 1 @xitng infrastructurs retum st the end of concesslon perod: Yes

KM 244400 in the stale of Haryana and | obligation: Nd

Package-2 Exstng Ch. Km pe.pricing dates: No §
114582 10 kim 24+400 (Desig Ch. g,4is upon which re-pricing or re-negatiath
Km 94262 1o km 224000} UNGEN 3y grsfen payable ts granter: Nil
NHDPWDH”MNM"mmm

mmxmmmouimu:dem ) . .
hal recover s irusttrmont mm:uconmmmurmm:oqm;ummwmscon,mmu
il Bkl MR s 208l b0 0.5% (Zaro point five per cent) of 80 % (Sixty per cant) of the EPC for the first 30
and O&M payment o be made wm}wwmmmmmmumwmnmmmmmu
ihe auhonly, in Bccoance with S2/CUIBed on tha pre-rata basis for each day preceding the said 30 (thiny) days peied

the terms and congitons sat fon i TOTMIRRtIoR: Dafauit mads st epectiad in TA excopl caused by farce mescure event. by
...'.m..m.mmmwenﬂmmhmmmmmmmmnmaﬂl,mmu

27 Fair Value Measurements

A

Accounting Classification and Fair Values

| | | |
Particulars | FvoCi l P'm(‘_"m'lt"""] Total
05 |

gnilicant
Ohssrvable

Total

Inputls

Fa,

As at 31:Mar-2021 :
Cash and cash equivalents 2497 24.97 za.97 24,97

Otner financial assets 2544 41 2 844 41 254441 2844 41
Total Financlal Assets - . 2,569.38 2,569.38 . - 2,669.38 2,660.38
Borrowings-Banks 192111 | 4,821.14 1,839.50 1,939.50
Trade payable 171.83 | 171.83 171.83 171.83
Other financia! liabilities 3271 | 327 271 32.71
Total Financial Liabllities - . 212565 2,125.65 - - 2,144.04 2,144.04
H = - " oy

Cesh and cash equivalents 204 2.84 284 2.84
Other financial assets 3515.22 3,615.22 3,515.22 3,515.22
Total Financial Assets . . 3,518.06 3,518.06 - - 3,618.06 3,618.08
Bomowings-Banks 248212 248212 2,499 50 2,499.50
Borowings-Others 104.37 | 10437 104.37 104,37
Trade payable 233.66 232.66 23366 233.66
Other linancial liabilites 8.16 8.16 8.16 8,16
Total Financial Liabilities - - 2,3_2-2._31 ZJggg,:!‘l - - z,a‘_g.ﬁs 2,31_!:&3___
Note:

) The carrying amount of financial assets and liebilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to the current and short term nature of such balances

28

and no material differences in the values,

M t of fair values (Levels 1,2 and 3)

Level:1

It includes i tment in equity sh and mutual fund that has a quoted price and which are actively traded on the slock exchange. It has been valued using the
closing price as at the reporting period on the stock exchange.

Level:2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active markel is determined using valuation techniques which maximise tha use of cbservable
market data and rely as little as possible on enlity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrumenl is
included in level 2.

Level:3

These instrumanis gre valued based on significant unobservable inputs whereby future cash flows are discounted using appropriate discount rate.

When measuring the fair value of an asset cr a liability, the Company uses cbservable market dala s far as possible. If the inputs used 1o measure the fair value of
an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then |he fair value measurement is categorised in its entiraly in the same level of the fair
value hieraichy as the lowes! level inpul thal is significant 1o the entire measurement.

Financlal Instruments Risk Management Objective and Policies
The Company's actvities expose It 1o variety of inancial risks. credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's focus is o foreses the unpredictability of
financial markets and seek 1o minimize potential adverse effi on its financial perfor 2. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment
and ight of the Company's risk gemant fra rk. Tha Board of Directors has eslablished a risk managament policy 1o identify and anafyse the risks
faced by the Company, to sel appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor iske and adharence o limils, Risk management ms are reviewed periodically
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities, The Board of Directors oversee compliance with the C t policies and
procedures, and reviews the risk management framework. The Company's financial liabllites comprise mainly of
Gumpany'a finandel asscls wompriae mainly ol coah (& vash cguhalonla end olhor :md-:gbmﬁ
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Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
{(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Gurrency: Indian Rupees in Million)

i) Credit Risk
Cradit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet the obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credil risk primarily other financial assels including deposits with banks. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of fransactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties,
The camying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure
Other Financlal Assets
This comprises malnly of financial assats receivable - Grant and Annuity Recelvabia from NHAI. The management is of the view that (hose financial assets are not
impaired as the customer is governmenl corporation where no credit risk is percelved. Further the managemenl does nol anticipate a significanl loss on account of
the time value of money
Finally, the Company's exposure to credit risk on its operating activities has led to no major reconsideration of the Expected Credit Losses on customers at end of

March, 2022,

iy Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated wilh its financial liabilities that are settied by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, thal it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both narmal and stressed congitions, without incurring unacoeptable losses or risking damage o the Company's reputation.

Exposure to Liquidity Risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilites al the reporting dale. The amounts are gross and undiscounied.
! Carrying ! Contractual Cash Flows

Particulars e |
frtAmaunt < Total

|Non-derlvative financlal liabilities as at 31-Mar-2021 ;

Borrowings-Banks [ 1,939.50 140.69 742,68 1,047.13
Trade payables fooAnas 171.83 171.83 - -
Other current financial liabilities 32.71 32.1 32.71 - -
Total 2,125.65 2,144.04 354.23 T42.68 1,047.43
Non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31-Mar-2022
Bomowings-Banks 2,482.12 2,489.50 23347 603.74 1,572.59
Borowings-Others 104.37 . - - -
Trade payables 233.86 23368 23366 - -
Other current financial liabilities 8,18 8.16 8.18 - -
Total . 2,828.31 2,741.32 474.99 693.74 1,672.68
iii) Market Risk

Markel risk Is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prises - will affect the Company's income or the
value of its holdings of financial investments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including fareign currency recsivables and
payabies. The Company is exposed lo market risk primarily related to forelgn exchange rale risks. Thus, our expasure lo marked risk is a function of revenue
generaling and operaling activities In foreign currency. The objective of markel risk management is o avoid i P in foreign y revenues and
coSis,

(a) Currency Risk

The tunctional currency of the Company is Indian Rup {Rs). The Company is not exposed to foreign currency nsk.

(b) Price Risk

The Company I not exposed to any price nisk.

(c) Interest Rate Risk
interast rate risk is the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluale because of changes in markel Interest rates. The interes!

sk arises to the Company mainly from long term borrowings with variable rales. The Gompany measures risk through senoitivity analysis, Currently, landing by
commercial banks is at variable rates only, which is the inherent business risk.
The Company's exposure (o interest rate nsk due to variable interest rale borrowings is as foliows:

Term loan from banks - variable rate borrowings

Paricuams | 31.Mar-2022 |~ 31-Mar-2021
Increase or decraase in interest rate by 100 basis point® 25.00

‘Pmﬂlwﬂmmaseincmordaamammmmmdmema

29 Capltal Management
The Company's policy is to maintain strong
business.
The Company manages the capital structure by balanced mix of debt and equity The Company's capital ture is influenced by the changes in regulatory
framework, government policies, available options of financing and the impact of the same on the liquidity position.

capital base so as 0 maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wiolly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: indian Rupees in Million)

30

31

32

33

34

As at

Particulars

| 31-Mar.2022| 31.Mar.2021

Total borrowings 280387 1,939.50
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (2.84) (24.07)
Adjusted Net Debts 2,601.03 1,914.53
Equity share capital §80.30 619.80
Other equity 408.01 200.52
Total Equity 1,058.34 820.32
Adjusted Net Dobt to Equity Ratio 243 2.33

Assets pledged/ hypothecated! morigaged as security
The camrying amounts of assets pledged as securily for current and non-current borrawings are as follows:

As at | As al
PSS 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021
Non-Current Assets
Propenty, Plant and Equipment 302 3.18
Grant & Annuity receivabie from NHAI 3,011.08 1,986.07
Advance tax and TDS assets §9.83 50,92
Receivable from Govt authorities 255.81 -
Current Assels
Grant & Annuity receivabie from NHAI 50324 $48.30
Deposits & Advances 0.89 0.04
Trade receivable 8.00 8.00
Advance to contraclor 28.27 3341
Receivable from Govt authorities 8085 268.4
Cash & Bank balance 284 2497
Tolal Assets pledged! hypothecated! mortgaged as security 3,939.24 2,933.83

Note: Amount of assets pledged are carrying values

Contingant Liabilities and Commitmants

Particulars Asat | = Asat
=S 31-Mar-2022 | 31-Mar.2024
Contingent Liabilitles

The Company has na contingent or conditional Liabiliies of any kind arising from or in connection with any transaction or & line of

business by the Company.

Commitments for Project EPC Work

Awarded EPC Contract 5,150.00 5,160 00

Less; Cost incurred till dale {5,150.00), (4,290.22)

Less: Mobilisation/ Material advance - (33.41)
Commitments for Project EPC Work not provided for 0.00 817.37

Eaming Per Share

Asat Ag at

Particulars 31.Mar-2022 | 31-Mar-2021

Face value per equity share (in Rs) 10.00 10.00
(=) Profit for the period attributable 10 equity shareholders (in Mn) 17§.09 122.29
(b) Number of equity shares al the beginning of the period 6,19,80,000 5,24,60,000
(c) Equity shares issued dunng the period _,#0,50,000  85,30,000
(d) Number of equity shares at the end of the period 6,50,30,000 6,19,80,000
(e) Weighted average number of equily shares for calculating basic EPS 6,22,13,014  5,80,87,178
{f) Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating ciluled EPS 6,22,13,014 5,60,87 178
Earnings Per Shares (in Rs)

Basic eaming per share (a/e) 281 218

Diluted earning per share {aff) 281 2.18
Nota:

Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of equity shares oulstanding al the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of equity shares Issued
during the year multiplied by the time weighting faclor, The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific share are oulstanding as a propertian
of iotal number of days during the year/ pariod

Forelgn Currency Transactions

Asat | As at

Particulars 31-Mar-2022 | 31-War-2021
(i) Expenditure in foreign currency g -
(it) CIF value of import “

{iii) FOB value of export s

(iv) Eamnings in foreign exchange Lo 11 4]
(v) Remittance in foreign exchange B

Disclosure for Ind AS-116 "Leases™
Total amount of laase paymenis towards short term leases is Rs.0.10 Mn (FY Rs.0.10 Mn) and shown as expense in the profit & Loss stale




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of H.G. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

35 Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS-19 “Employee Benefits”
Disclosure under Ind AS-10 is not applicable on the company.

36 Impairment of Financial Assets
The credit risk on the financial assels has not increased since the inifial recognition, therefore company measure the loss allowance for the financial assets at an

amount equal to 12 month expecled credit losses. Since the financial assels are expecied lo be realised within the contractual period of the invoice raised, as such,
there Is no ECL (expected credit loss) envisaged in the value of financial assets under SCA (Service Concession agreement) by the management.

37 The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

38 Segment Reporting

In accordance with the requirements of ind AS-108 ‘Segment Reporting’, the Company is primarily engaged in a business of civil construction and has no other
primary reportable segments. The Managing Director of the Company allocate the resources and assess lhe performance of the Company, thus he is the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the business as single segment, hence no separale segment needs 1o be
disclosed

DIQIMELION AUA

oul LeOQrabnical AR
As the Company operates in India only, hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed
Information Aboyt Malor Customers
Revenue of the Company derived from single customer (NHAI) which amounis fo 10% or more of the Company's revenue.
39 Ratio

Items Considered for Numerator and

Variation ' |R

-54.24% STL Borrowing increased

Particulars

ninator |

Current Ratio Cument Assets / urrent Liabilities

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt / Shareholder's Equity 3.38%
(Profit After Tax + Non-cash oparaling
Dabt Service Coverage Ratio expensas + Interast + other adjustments) / 1.13 0.85 18.70%
(Debt Principal + Interest)
(Profit After Tax - Preference Dinidend, if i
RmuT cl.'.l Equity Ra_tlu any) | Average Shareholder's Equlty 18.54% 17.64% 5.13%
Gost of Goods Soid OR Sales | Average | [\ T
ihvenm Turnover Ratio nventory A NA NA -
Net Credit Sales / Average Trade
Trade Receivable Turmover Ratio Receivables Lz::s.za 197.78 -
Net Credit Purchases | Average Trade B Trade payable increased due
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Payables e 8,15 8.96 -31.38% 1o March manth Ols
Net Capital Tumover Ratio Nel Sales / Average Working Capital I _B.57 210 185 650% Revenue increased
Net Profil Ratio et Profit | Nel Sales e 9.80% 773% 26.82% Finance income increased
Profit Before Inlerest & Taxes / Capital
|Retum on Capital Employed Employed (Net Worth of Shareholders+ =~ 13.37% 11.33% 18.03%
| Borrowings + DTL) Noss ety
Return of Investment Income on Investmen / Investment _NA NA -

40 Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet date
The Company evaluates events end transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date bul prior lo the financial statements to determine the necessity
fwmnmmmmwﬂngdwwhuwumd‘ clions in the financial s, As af 20-May-2022 there were no subsequent evens lo be
mn\zedormpoﬂedtnatmnmmww.

41 Other Notes
a) The Company does not have any transaction lo which he provision of Ind AS-2 relating lo ~/aluation of Inventories” applies.
b) In the opinion of the Board, the current assels, loans & advances, have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business al least equal o the amount at
which they are stated in the Balance Sheel.
) Thera were no litigation pending against the company which could be malerially impact its financial position as at the end of the year.
d) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee penafits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Cede has been published In the Gazette of india. However, the date on which the Gode will come into effect has not been notified and the
ﬁnalnmlmarprﬂlnﬂmrmamlyutheenissuad.mcmﬂmmhmmdmcwamntloumaaﬂcwffsdwﬂwilrmwmtahdmwm
the period the Code becomes effective,
&) During the year, the Company has recaived tha PCODICOD and the management has revised their estimates of Operation & Maintenance and Major
mmmtuwmsmnnwmmimmdmeumammm | d while recognizi the finance income on receivable from NHAI under Service
Concession Agreement in the book of accounts.

42 Additional regulatory Information required by Schedule Il
(i) Details of benami property held
No ings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1688) and Rules made thereunder.
(i) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has term loan borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of securily as referred in Borrowing Security Clause including current
assets. The required periodic information has been complied by the Company which are in agreement with the books of accounts.
(i) Wilful defaulter
None of the entities in the Company has been decl




Gurgaon Sohna Highway Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary of HG. Infra Engineering Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the period ended 31-Mar-2022
(Cumrency: Indian Rupees in Million)

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companles Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1958,

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has compliad with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

(vi) Compliance with approved schema(s) of arrangements
The Company has not enlered into any scheme of arrangemen which has an accounting impact on current ar previous financial year.

(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premlum
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any ather persan(s) or entity(ies), including loreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the intermediary shall
(a) directly or indiractly land or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsogver by or on bahaif of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiarles) or
(b) provide any guaranise, sacurity or the like 1o or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
Tha Campany hae not received any fund from eny pefmon(s) or enilyiies), Incluging foreign entiies (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the group shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or inves! in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultmate Beneficiares)
or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate bereficlaries

{vili) Undisclosed Income

There is no income sumendered or disclosed as incoma dunng the cument or previous year in the tax is under the Income Tax Act. 1061, thal has not
been recurded in the books of account.

(ix) Detalls of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invasted in crypto currency or virtual currency during the curren! or pravious year.

(x) Valuation of PP&E, Intangible asset and Investment property
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (ineluding right-of-uce assels) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

The notes referned above are an integral part of these financial stalements
As per our report of even date attached
Fer S.L. Chhajed & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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